
630 East Hopkins

San Marcos, TX 78666City of San Marcos

Meeting Minutes

Planning and Zoning Commission

6:00 PM City Council ChambersTuesday, April 14, 2015

630 E. Hopkins

I.  Call To Order

With a quorum present, the regular meeting of the San Marcos Planning and Zoning Commission 

was called to order by Chair Wood at 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, April 14, 2015 in the Council 

Chambers of the City of San Marcos, City of San Marcos, City Hall, 630 E. Hopkins, San Marcos, 

TX 78666.

II.  Roll Call

Chairperson Chris Wood, Vice Chair Kenneth Ehlers, Commissioner Angie 

Ramirez, Commissioner Brian Olson, Commissioner Amy Stanfield, 

Commissioner Jim Garber, Commissioner Travis Kelsey, Commissioner Shawn 

Dupont, and Commissioner Saul Gonzales

Present 9 - 

III.  Chairperson's Opening Remarks

IV.  30 Minute Citizen Comment Period

Robert Martin, owner of single family dwelling on Debbie Court for about 6-7 years.  

He stated that there were a good percentage of residents present in opposition to the 

zoning change. He explained that a zoning change from single family to town homes 

has many physical changes.  He mentioned that the Commission and residents need 

to understand the Code.  Mr. Martin pointed out that the Code is difficult to 

understand.  He felt it would be valuable for someone to create a list of the physical 

characteristics that they could understand.  He  added that the premiability of the area 

should also be studied.  

Bob Klett, resident of 1201 Cimmarron Court and formerly of  1124 Debbie Court 

since approximately 2004.  He stated that he moved to Debbie Court because it was a 

quiet and family friendly area. He added that many residents are raising their families 

in the area.  Mr. Klett mentioned that his child walked to school at Crockett Elementary 

and since has moved one block closer to Crockett.   He pointed out that on paper the 

property is identified as mixed use, but felt that it was deceived because there are 

several single family residents in the area.   Mr. Klett expressed his concerns of 

having a Sagewood repeat in the area in addition to rent by the room development.  

He pointed out that there is not a transition zone between the proposed development 

and  current single family homes.  Mr. Klett added that town homes would be 

unstable.  He stated he is concerned for the safety of the children with increased 

traffic.  He is also concerned with ruining the neighborhood. 

Page 1City of San Marcos



April 14, 2015Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes

Karen Schneider, 1100 Cimmarron Court, stated that her husband wrote letter which 

she read.  Ms. Schneider stated they are opposed to the changes because of his 

concern with safety of the families in the neighborhood. She stated that the area is 

quiet and the neighbors look out for each other. The children play outside in the 

streets and front yards.  She pointed out that transient type residents have the 

possibility of  allowing less than preferred individuals in the immediate area with little 

control.  They understand that is not a statement for all townhome development.  In 

addition, traffic and street access is a major concern.   Ms. Schneider add that the 

zoning change will lead to more congestion and concerns for safety of the families in 

the neighborhood.

CONSENT AGENDA

1. Consider approval of the minutes of the Regular Meeting on April 14, 2015 and April 28, 2015.

2. PC-15-06_02 (Cottonwood Creek Phase 1, Section 2) Consider a request by Ramsey 

Engineering, LLC, on behalf of Cottonwood Creek JDR, LTD, for approval of a Preliminary 

Subdivision Plat of Cottonwood Creek Phase 1, Section 2 for approximately 9.25 acres, more 

or less, out of the Farnam Frye, John F Geister, and Charles Henderson Surveys, consisting 

of 58 residential lots and two 2 private parkland lots located near the intersection of Monterrey 

Oaks and Highway 123.

3. PC-15-07_02 (Blanco Vista, Tract C-2) Consider a request by CSF Civil Group, on behalf of 

Brookfield Residential, for approval of a Preliminary Plat for approximately 11.2 acres, more or 

less, out of the William Ward League Survey, located east of Blanco Vista Boulevard.

A motion was made by Commissioner Stanfield, seconded by Commissioner Olson, that Action 

Agenda be approved. The motion carried by the following vote:

For: Chairperson Wood, Vice Chair Ehlers, Commissioner Ramirez, Commissioner 

Olson, Commissioner Stanfield, Commissioner Garber, Commissioner Kelsey, 

Commissioner Dupont and Commissioner Gonzales

9 - 

Against: 0   

PUBLIC HEARINGS

4. CUP-15-03 (Japan Latino) Hold a public hearing and consider a request by Wen Feng Lin on 

behalf of Japan Latino Sushi and Steak for the renewal of a Conditional Use Permit for the 

sale of mixed drinks for on premise consumption at 1328 N IH 35.

Chair Wood opened the public hearing. 

Will Parrish, Staff Planning Technician gave an overview of the project. 

There were no citizen comments and the public hearing was closed.

A motion was made by Commissioner Kelsey, seconded by Vice Chair Ehlers, that CUP-15-03 

(Japan Latino) be approved with conditions that the permit shall be valid for three (3) years, 

provided standards are met, subject to the point system, and that the permit shall be posted in 

the same area and manner as the Certificate of Occupancy . The motion carried by the following 

Page 2City of San Marcos



April 14, 2015Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes

vote:

For: Chairperson Wood, Vice Chair Ehlers, Commissioner Ramirez, Commissioner 

Olson, Commissioner Stanfield, Commissioner Garber, Commissioner Kelsey, 

Commissioner Dupont and Commissioner Gonzales

9 - 

Against: 0   

5. ZC-15-01 (Marlton St. at Hamilton Ave.) Hold a public hearing and consider a request by John 

and Forrest Higdon for a zoning change from “SF-6” Single Family Residential to “TH” 

Townhome for approximately 1.544 acres out of the Thomas J. Chambers Survey, Abstract 

No. 2, Hays County, Texas located at the corner of Marlton St. and Hamilton Ave.

Chair Wood opened the public hearing. 

Andrea Villallobos, Staff Planning Technician gave an overview of the request. 

John Stovall, 1104 Debbie Court stated that the neighborhood is in opposition to the 

proposed zoning change.  He stated that 50 residents are in opposition to the request.  

He explained that his neighborhood is very active in the real estate business. 

Investors and families are competing in a very tight market for single family residents.   

Mr. Stovall pointed out that the neighborhood is desirable because of close proximity 

to Crockett Elementary School, which is consistently rated a high performance school.    

He pointed out that there are several concerns regarding the property that need to be 

addressed. Mr. Stovall added that a developer can go bankrupt as seen in other 

locations or sold to another developer.  Mr. Stovall stated that they were presented 

with photos  by the developer which is all that they can go on.  He presented photos of 

duplex units across the street from the proposed development which showed 7 cars in 

the driveway. Mr. Stovall also presented a police report.  

Lucy Gamez, 1005  Perkins, stated that her property is directly across from proposed 

development where she has resided for 18 years.   She explained that her main 

concern has always been immediate drainage especially when it involves impervious 

cover.  No permit was issued and the developer began to move dirt.   She explained 

the natural water flow which goes behind her home.  She spoke to Sabas and Avila 

and the site was viewed and expressed concerns.   She explained that the previous 

owner did not receive a permit and began to move and fill in dirt on the property in a 

location near her home.   Ms. Gamez explained that water drainage is a big issue.   

She pointed out that she spoke to Mr. Avila at the time and he came out to the site.  

Based on their conversation Mr. Avila also expressed concerns.  Ms. Gamez added 

that Mr. Avila advised her that there are major drainage issues and that he would deny 

the proposed development at that time.  She pointed out that it has been 20 years and 

the drainage issues have not been resolved.  She said that growth is good and San 

Marcos is growing but we must plan smart and healthy.  She felt that town homes will 

attract renters and not homeowners especially in this case because it is in proximity to 

the university.  She added that without the property man power the City will not be 

able to enforce the Occupancy Restrictions Ordinance.  Ms. Gamez pointed out that 

Page 3City of San Marcos



April 14, 2015Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes

the City has currently approved several apartments projects that  will provide 

adequate housing for renters. She added that the property is best suited for single 

family residents.  In addition, the comp plan calls for single family homes on the lot.  

She told the Commission keep the property as single family residential  and keep the 

integrity of the  neighborhood. Ms. Gamez asked why the .578 acres remain as single 

family and if duplexes are allowed. 

Leslie Adams, homeowner for five years at 1124 Cimarron Court.  He mentioned that 

he has a 2 year old daughter and they are expecting another daughter.  Mr Adams 

stated that he went to school in San Marcos and received his masters at Texas State.  

He said that his major concern is safety.   He explained that his family walk to the 

mailboxes and to the two playscapes in the area. Mr. Adams pointed out that when 

you drive up Marlton Street it is barely wide enough to drive through because of cars 

parked in front of homes. Mr. Adams stated that he is against the request and would 

love to raise his children where he currently resides located near a elementary school. 

Jason Cain,  906 Marlton, within 200 foot buffer, stated that he is against the request.  

He feels that the request is counter to the long term intentions and goals of zoning.  

Mr. Cain said that the neighborhood is already establish as a single family 

neighborhood.  He pointed out that the duplexes are separated from the single family 

homes.   He felt that single family is more sensible for the property.  He stated that he 

is not against students but it is difficult to manage their lifestyles.  Mr. Cain mentioned 

that no one wants to live next to students.  He added that his wife works as the 

University and he works in Austin and they choose to live in San Marcos.  

Emily Magley,  907 Marlton, said the map indicates the property is zoned duplex but 

stated that the property has never been a duplex.  She stated that she has lived in the 

neighborhood for 24 years and the street is narrow because there was not a road on 

Marlton when she purchased the house.  Two cul de sacs were added which was a 

great addition. She said they all want a development that will compliment the 

neighborhood, add integrity to the neighborhood and does not detract from it.  She 

added that there is already diversity in the neighborhood and they do not need to add 

more diversity.  Ms. Magley mentioned that they are not opposed to growth but how 

the growth in the neighborhood is developed. 

Marcus Bryant, 1109 Cimarron Court, stated that the statistics are incorrect and that 

he owns the house and is opposed to the request. 

John Higdon, the applicant stated he was from Austin Texas and is happy to bring the 

community together and apologized to all in opposition.   He explained that the his son 

as a Real Estate Agent and himself as a Real Estate Broker saw an undeveloped 

block face that had not been platting within the city limits which is very close to jobs 

and community services.  Mr. Higdon said the property having all the city infrastructure 

already in place and has gone through many zoning and has never been developed.  

He saw it as an opportunity to develop the entire block face in a create and  flexible 

way that will not endanger anyone's neighborhood.  Mr. Hidgon felt that the 

development would enhance the neighborhood and provide families and maybe 

Page 4City of San Marcos



April 14, 2015Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes

elderly that like to move out of single family with a large lot and can't take care of the 

property.  He explained that he presented photos of town homes with no vehicles 

parked in front of it because that is what he would like to happen and that is what he 

has observed.   Mr. Hidgon added that if they are allowed to develop the property they 

will put the services in the rear to try and preserve the neighborhood.  He felt that 

students could not afford the expense of a the town homes in addition to their tuition.  

Mr. Higdon stated he is available to answer questions.

There were no additional comments and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Kelsey, seconded by Commissioner Garber, that ZC-15-01 

be denied. The motion carried by the following vote:

For: Chairperson Wood, Vice Chair Ehlers, Commissioner Ramirez, Commissioner 

Olson, Commissioner Stanfield, Commissioner Garber, Commissioner Kelsey, 

Commissioner Dupont and Commissioner Gonzales

9 - 

Against: 0   

NON-CONSENT AGENDA

6. Presentation and discussion on years 2016-2018 of the City’s 10 year Capital Improvement 

Program. 

Laurie Moyer, Director of Engineering/CIP Department gave a presentation on the years 

2016-2018 of the City's 10 year Capital Improvements Program.  She provided the Commission 

with Capital Improvement Project binders for their review.  She advised the Commission that a 

Public Hearing would be held at the next Planning Commission meeting and that Department 

Directors would be available to answer questions.

V.  Question and Answer Session with Press and Public.

There were no questions from the press and public. 

VI.  Adjournment

A motion was made by Commissioner Ehlers, seconded by Commissioner Olson, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 7:19 p.m.  The motion carried unanimously. 

___________________________      ___________________________ 

Chris Wood, Chair                               Kenneth Ehlers, Vice Chair

___________________________     ___________________________

Angie Ramirez, Commissioners          Travis Kelsey, Commissioner 

____________________________  ____________________________ 

Amy Stanfield, Commissioner             Brian Olson, Commissioner

Page 5City of San Marcos



April 14, 2015Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes

____________________________   ____________________________

Jim Garber, Commissioner                  Saul Gonzales, Commissioner

____________________________ 

Shawn Dupont, Commissioner 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________

Francis Serna, Recording Secretary

Notice of Assistance at the Public Meetings

I certify that the attached notice and agenda of items to be considered by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission was removed by me from the City Hall bulletin board on the 

_____________________________ day of _____________________________

_________________________________________________ Title: 

_________________________________________

Page 6City of San Marcos


